

CONDITIONS OF TENDER

FLOOD DAMAGED ROADS RESTORATION

Zone 5 North and Zone 5 South

VOLUME 1 OF 4

Tropical Cyclone Kirrily January 2024

ESC.0044.2324.U.REC

CONTRACT Nos. Zone 5 North – ESC2024-041 Zone 5 South – ESC2024-042

TENDERER INFORMATION	

PART 1 - PREAMBLE

Etheridge Shire Council invites tenders from suitably qualified contractors for **Flood Damage Roads Restoration** as specified in Part 5 – Scope, below. The works shall be completed in accordance with the requirement of the Specification and the QRA guidelines (attached). Tendered pricing shall exclude GST (unless noted otherwise) and all costs associated with completing the specified work.

PART 2 – GENERAL INFORMATION				
1. Contract details 2. Tender Questions	Flood Damaged Roads Restoration Zone 5 North Zone 5 South CONTRACT Nos.: ESC2024-041 – Flood Damage Roads Restoration – Zone 5 North ESC2024-042 – Flood Damage Roads Restoration – Zone 5 South ESC0044.2324.U.REC Enquiries regarding the Procurement Process must be submitted to Procurement			
Briefing or site inspection	tender@etheridge.qld.gov.au no later than F Details	Mandatory	RSVP	
	Tender document breifing followed by site inspection Tuesday 26 November 2024	⊠ Yes □ No	ahigman@she	y Higman Shepherd oherdservices.com.au y 25 November 2024
4. Submission of Tender	Tenders must be submitted via VendorPanel by no later than: 12 noon on Friday 6 December 2024 Note: Adequate time must be allowed for the Tender and all supporting documents to be uploaded and received by this time.			
5. Evaluation Criteria	Evaluation Criteria			Weighting (%) (Optional)
	Local preference policy			10
	Value for money			30
	Capability / Resources / Capacity			10 / 10 / 10
	Previous performance			20
	Management plan documentation and impler	nentation		10
	Note Details associated with how tenders will be a Methodology below. Details associated with each of the above Evtender submissions are provided in Clause 1	aluation Crit	eria and how the	ey will be assessed for
6. Tenders should not be longer than	N/A (including all attachments, annexures, supplements, parts, schedules or appendices)			
7. Tenders to be valid for	90 calendar days after the date and time stated in Item 4. (as extended if at all, pursuant to the Procurement Process Conditions)			
8. Complaints	Complaints regarding Procurement Process to be directed to: tender@etheridge.qld.gov.au			
PART 3 – PROCUREMENT PROCESS CONDITIONS				
The Procurement Process is governed by, and this Request for Tender is to be read in conjunction with, the Procurement Process Conditions: Attached to or provided with this request for tender and identified as: Flood Damaged Roads Restoration				
☐ Available for viewing or download from VendorPanel				

PART	PART 4 – CONTRACT		
\boxtimes	The contract shall be substantially in the form attached to or provided with this request for tender and identified as: Flood Damaged Road Restoration Works		
	The contract shall comprise the documents identified in Clause 4 of the Principal's standard terms and conditions which can be found at [INSERT HYPERLINK TO WEBSITE]		
	The contract shall comprise the documents identified in Clause 4 of the Principal's standard terms and conditions which are attached to or provided with this request for tender and identified as [FILE NAME(S) OF THE STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS]		
	The contract shall be made in accordance with the terms and conditions of Local Buy contract Arrangements.		
	The Tenderer must request a copy of the form of contract from the Principal		
Note:	Where this request for tender is for appointment to a register of pre-qualified suppliers or as a preferred supplier then a contract will not be formed between the Principal and a successful tenderer, and a successful tenderer will not be required to enter into a contract with the Principal, unless and until that tenderer is subsequently engaged to provide works, goods and/or services pursuant to that appointment.		
PART 5 – SCOPE			
\boxtimes	The Scope is described in the document(s) attached to or provided with this request for tender and identified as Volume 3 Scope and Specification. The scope is also detailed in the pricing schedule(s).		
	The Scope is as follows:		
PART 6 – RESPONSE SCHEDULES			

The Tender must be submitted in the form provided in the response schedules attached to or provided with this request for tender and identified as Volume 4 Response Schedules.

TENDER CONDITIONS		

Table of Contents

1.1	Introduction	
1.2	Summary of the RFT	
1.3	Tender Briefing(s)	7
1.4	Proposed Tender Timetable	7
1.5	eTendering Conditions	7
1.6	Definitions	7
1.7	How to prepare your Tender	8
1.8	Variation to the RFT	8
1.9	Council rights Post-Closing Time	8
1.10	Clarification of the RFT	9
1.11	Liability	9
1.12	Tenderers to Inform Themselves	9
1.13	Closure of Tender	. 10
1.14	Acceptance of Tenders	. 10
1.15	Late Tenders	. 10
1.16	Alternative Tender	. 10
1.17	Joint Tenders	. 11
1.18	Statement of Non-Compliance, Departures and Assumptions	. 11
1.19	Tender Validity Period	. 11
1.20	Tenderer Mistakes/Errors	. 11
1.21	Clarification of a Tender	. 11
1.22	Identity of the Tenderer	. 11
1.23	Tendered Price	. 11
1.24	Ownership of Tenders	. 12
1.25	Confidentiality	. 12
1.26	Evaluation Methodology	. 12
1.27	Evaluation Criteria	
1.28	Priority of Documents	. 15
2.1	Costs of Tender	. 15
2.2	No obligation to enter into a contract	. 15
2.3	Canvassing of Officials	. 15
2.4	Improper assistance	. 15
2.5	Anti-Competitive Conduct	
2.6	Publicity	
2.7	Conflict of Interest	
2.8	Governing Law	. 16
	-	

1. Conditions of Tendering

1.1 Introduction

Tenderers are encouraged to visit http://www.etheridge.qld.gov.au to obtain a detailed understanding of Council.

1.2 Summary of the RFT

Council is seeking Tenders from appropriately qualified and experienced contractors for the provision of Goods, Services or Works. Council's detailed requirements are detailed in Volume 3 Scope and Specification.

This RFT sets out the general requirements for the Goods, Services or Works and the terms and conditions of submitting a Tender.

1.3 Tender Briefing(s)

If Council holds a briefing session(s), site inspections(s) or similar, the details will be specified in, Item 3 of this Volume 1 Conditions of Tender. A Tenderer must attend the briefing session, site inspection or other specified occasion if it is specified as 'mandatory'. If any Tenderer fails to attend a mandatory briefing session, site inspection or other specified occasion, Council will, unless there are extenuating circumstances, disqualify the Tenderer from further participating in the process.

1.4 Proposed Tender Timetable

Please refer to, Item 4 of this Volume 1 Conditions of Tender, for the estimated timetable of key events and dates with regards to this Tender process.

1.5 eTendering Conditions

VendorPanel is the electronic tendering system used for the electronic publication of information, including the RFT, online forum for clarification and questions, notifications and addendums, and to accommodate the electronic submission of Tenders.

http://www.vendorpanel.com.au

Tenderers lodging a Tender electronically must review and accept conditions shown on the electronic Tendering website prior to uploading their Tenders.

Electronic lodgement must be fully complete by Closing Time. The electronic link will cease at Closing Time and if your Tender submission is not complete, it will be deemed as a late submission and *may not be considered*.

Similarly, Council may not consider Tenders that contain corrupt files.

Tenders received via electronic transmission other than through Council's electronic Tendering site (including without limitation an e-mail system) will not be accepted.

1.6 Definitions

Unless the context requires otherwise, the following terms used in this RFT have the meanings ascribed to them as set out below:

Alternative Tender – means a response to this RFT that does not comply with certain requirements of this RFT but would only require minor adjustments to become a Complying Tender. It includes a Tender covering only some of the Goods, Services or Works.

Closing Time - means the Tender closing date and time for the receipt of Tenders, as set out in, Item 4 (as may be updated by Council and advised to all potential Tenderers in writing).

Conflict – means any actual or potential conflict of interest or duty, or any position that a reasonable person would perceive as giving rise to such a conflict.

Complying Tender - means a Tender that complies with the requirements of this RFT.

Conditions of Contract - means the contract terms provided in Volume 2 Conditions of Contract.

Council – means Etheridge Shire Council.

Evaluation Criteria - means the factors Council will take into account in any evaluation of Tenders, as included in, Item 6 of this Volume 1 Conditions of Tender.

Goods, Services or Works - means the deliverable(s) the preferred Tenderer will be required to provide to Council, as described at a high level on the front cover of the RFT and in more detail in Volume 3 Scope and Specification, once the Conditions of Contract have been agreed between the preferred Tenderer and Council.

Nominated Contact Officer - means Council's nominated contact person as set out in Item 8 of this Volume 1 Conditions of Tender.

Period of Contract - means the contract duration.

Request for Tender or **RFT**- means this document inviting Tenderers to submit a Tender to supply the Goods, Services or Works on terms based on the Conditions of Contract.

Tender – means an Tenderer's response documents in the form as specified in Volume 4 Response Schedules to provide Council's requirements as set out in Volume 3 Scope and Specification and constituting an offer by the Tenderer to Council in reply to the RFT to supply the Goods, Services or Works on the terms specified in the Conditions of Contract (subject to any amendments to those terms agreed in writing by the parties, based on changes requested by the Tenderer in its Tender).

Tenderer- means a company, person or entity (including representatives) which submits a Tender pursuant to this RFT; and includes, where the context permits, prospective Tenderers and other recipients of this RFT.

Written Representation means any statement, representation or warranty that has been made by Council in writing either in this RFT or through the tendering process described in this RFT that is directed to Tenderers.

1.7 How to prepare your Tender

- Carefully read all parts of this document and ensure you understand the requirements. Seek clarification where required, as set out in clause 1.10 below.
- Lodge your fully completed Tender in the form as specified in Volume 4 Response Schedules, including any other information required by this RFT, before the Closing Time.
- Failure to provide the required information in the required format may render a Tender non-complying.

1.8 Variation to the RFT

In certain circumstances, Council may need to do any of the following prior to the Closing Time by giving all potential Tenderers reasonable written notice of such:

- Change, vary or amend any information and/or issue addendums to the RFT. Any such addendum will become part of this RFT;
- Defer the Closing Time or any other date specified in this RFT;
- Correct any ambiguity or mistake concerning or arising out of this RFT; and/or
- Suspend, terminate or abandon this tendering process.

Where Council exercises these rights, it may seek amended Tenders.

1.9 Council rights Post-Closing Time

In certain circumstances, Council may need to do one or any combination of the following after the Closing Time:

- Cease, suspend or defer the tender process outlined in this RFT;
- Accept all or part of a Tender at the price(s) tendered unless the Tender states specifically to the contrary;
- Reject any Tender;
- Accept one or more Tenders;
- Disqualify any Tender that does not include all the information requested or is not in the format required;
- Proceed with the procurement the subject of this Tender by an arrangement other than that proposed in this RFT;

- Accept an Alternative Tender (provided that it meets all mandatory Evaluation Criteria); and/or
- Obtain further information from the Tenderer for the purposes of clarification or explanation of its Tender. This includes holding interviews with some or all Tenderers, including any personnel nominated by the Tenderer in the Tender.

All Tenders lodged will become the property of Council and on no account will they be returned to Tenderers.

1.10 Clarification of the RFT

If the Tenderer has any doubt as to the meaning of any part of this RFT it should seek clarification before submitting a Tender.

- (a) All requests for clarification must be submitted via the online forum at http://www.vendorpanel.com.au at least five business days prior to the Closing Time. Council reserves the right not to answer requests after this period.
- (b) Council is not obliged to respond to any question or request.
- (c) If the question or request is relevant to other prospective Tenderers, Council will make available to such other prospective Tenderers details of such a question or request together with any response, in which event those details will form part of this RFT.

1.11 Liability

The Tenderer acknowledges that Council (including Council's officers, employees, agents or advisers) will not be bound by any statement, representation or warranty made by, or on behalf of, Council in relation to the RFT, the tendering process or the subject matter of this RFT, unless that statement, representation or warranty is a Written Representation. Subject to the last two paragraphs in this clause 1.11, if any Written Representation subsequently proves incorrect or incomplete, the issue will be addressed through change control in the context of any ensuing contract between Council and the Tenderer (each acting reasonably).

While all due care has been taken in the preparation of this RFT, and while the Tenderer may rely on any Written Representations for the purposes of submitting its Tender, the Tenderer acknowledges that it must not otherwise rely on, and has no separate ability to claim against Council (or Council's officers, employees, agents or advisers) in respect of the adequacy, accuracy, reasonableness or completeness of the information communicated or provided in this RFT or through the tendering process.

To the fullest extent allowed by applicable law, all statutory or implied warranties are excluded and of no effect and neither Council nor Council's officers, employees, agents or advisers will be liable for any loss, costs, expenses or damage:

- arising as a result of reliance on such information by a Tenderer or any other person; or
- otherwise incurred by Tenderers or any other persons at any time, in relation to the tendering process, evaluation of Tender, any contract negotiation or the selection process generally.

If a Tenderer finds any discrepancy, ambiguity, error or inconsistency in the RFT or any other information provided by Council (other than minor clerical matters), the Tenderer must promptly notify Council's Nominated Contact Officer in writing, so that there is fair opportunity to consider what corrective action is necessary (if any).

Any actual discrepancy, ambiguity, error or inconsistency in the RFT or any other information provided by Council will be corrected by Council and provided (or the proper information made available) to all Tenderers without attribution to the Tenderer that provided the notice.

1.12 Tenderers to Inform Themselves

The information in this RFT has been provided in good faith. It is intended only as an explanation of Council's requirements and is not intended to form the basis of a Tenderer's decision on whether to enter into any contractual relationship with Council.

By responding to this RFT, the Tenderer will be deemed to have acknowledged and agreed that it has done so on the basis that it has the necessary skills, knowledge and experience to provide the Goods, Services or Works. Tenderers will be deemed to have:

- fully examined and understood the requirements of this RFT (including all documents and attachments referenced) and any other information made available by Council to Tenderers in relation to this RFT;
- satisfied itself that it has a full set of the RFT documents and all relevant attachments:

- made its own enquiries and assessed all risks regarding this RFT and the tendering process;
- not relied on any warranty or representation (whether oral or in writing or by conduct) made on behalf
 of Council except where such warranty or representation is set out in this RFT, made in writing by
 Council through the processes specified by these Conditions of Tender or otherwise constitutes a
 Written Representation;
- ensured that its Tender addresses all the requested information in Volume 4 Response Schedules
 and is presented in the required format, is accurate and complete, and is not misleading in any way;
- acknowledged that Council will rely on information provided by the Tenderer at all stages of this tendering process. Any information provided by the preferred Tenderer may (along with this RFT and the Tender itself) form part of the final agreed form of the Conditions of Contract;
- ensured that it complies with all applicable laws with regard to preparing its Tender (including but not limited to Australian Competition and Consumer Law and Occupational Health and Safety requirements):
- met all costs and expenses related to the preparation and lodgement of its Tender, and will meet all of its costs and expenses arising from subsequent negotiation, and any future costs connected with or relating to the tendering process; and
- satisfied itself as to the correctness and sufficiency of its Tender including tendered prices.

1.13 Closure of Tender

The Tender must be lodged by the Closing Time (as may be deferred by Council in its discretion) and by the method outlined in Item 7 of this Volume 1 Conditions of Tender.

Please refer to, Item 5 of this Volume 1 Conditions of Tender for the list of documents to be completed and submitted by the Tenderer before the Closing Time. Also refer to clause 1.5 regarding eTendering for requirements applying to electronic submission.

1.14 Acceptance of Tenders

Unless otherwise stated in this RFT, Tenders may be submitted for all or part of Council's requirements and may be accepted by Council either wholly or in part. Council is not bound to accept the lowest price or any Tender (and may reject any or all Tenders).

Council reserves the right to not accept a Tender (or any part of it) and is under no obligation to give reasons for not accepting a Tender. Tenderers will be informed in writing of the outcome of their Tender at the conclusion of the RFT process.

If any Tender is accepted by Council, such acceptance will be conditional until both parties sign a contract for the Goods, Services or Works, based on the Conditions of Contract (subject to negotiation of any amendments to those conditions requested by Tenderer in its Tender).

1.15 Late Tenders

Tenders lodged or received by Council after the Tender Closing Time are deemed to be late and will be disqualified and ineligible for consideration unless the Tenderer can clearly document to the satisfaction of Council that an event of exceptional circumstances caused the Tender to be lodged after the Closing Time.

Consideration of a Tender under this circumstance will be at Council's sole discretion.

The determination by Council of the actual time that the Tender was lodged is final. All Tenders lodged after the Closing Time will be recorded by Council.

Unless Council is satisfied there are exceptional circumstances, Council will inform a Tenderer whose Tender was lodged after the Closing Time that its Tender is ineligible for consideration.

1.16 Alternative Tender

Council reserves the right, in its absolute discretion, to consider an Alternative Tender (provided that any mandatory Evaluation Criteria are met) but is not obliged to do so.

If a Tenderer wishes to submit an Alternative Tender, it must also:

i. Submit a Complying Tender; and

- ii. Submit a copy of the clearly identified Alternative Tender in a marked-up form, which identifies all departures from the Complying Tender. In order to be considered for evaluation, any such Alternative Tender must:
 - 1. Fully describe its advantages, disadvantages, limitations and capabilities;
 - 2. Be fully costed;
 - 3. Permit ready comparison of the alternative offer with complying Tenders; and
 - 4. Expressly state where it does not comply with the terms of this RFT.

1.17 Joint Tenders

Council will not accept a joint Tender from two or more Tenderers.

1.18 Statement of Non-Compliance, Departures and Assumptions

The Tenderer must declare and detail any non-compliance with, departures from, or assumptions in relation to, the RFT in its Tender, in Item 18 of Volume 4 Response Schedules.

These non-compliances, departures or assumptions must address any material conditions or positions in relation to the Conditions of Contract and/or Volume 3 Scope and Specification.

Submitted Tenders will be deemed as accepting and complying with all of the Volume 2 Conditions of Contract and Volume 3 Scope and Specification unless explicitly noted in Item 18 of Volume 4 Response Schedules.

1.19 Tender Validity Period

All Tenders will remain valid and open for acceptance for the period of time stated in Part 2 General Information from the Closing Time, unless extended by mutual agreement between Council and the Tenderer(s) in writing.

1.20 Tenderer Mistakes/Errors

Council may, at its discretion, permit a Tenderer to correct an unintentional mistake or anomaly in its Tender after the Closing Time,

In no event will any correction be permitted if Council reasonably considers that the correction would materially alter the Tender.

Such a correction may be made either:

- i. at the request of Council, or
- ii. with the consent of Council at the request of the Tenderer.

If a Tender is varied in accordance with this clause 1.20, and if in the interests of fairness, it is deemed necessary, Council will notify in writing each other Tenderer whose Tender circumstances have the same or similar characteristics as the corrected Tender and provide that Tenderer with the opportunity of correcting its Tender in a similar way.

1.21 Clarification of a Tender

If, in the opinion of Council a Tender is unclear in any respect, Council may seek clarification from a Tenderer without notification to any other Tenderer. Failure to supply clarification to the satisfaction of Council may render the Tender liable to disqualification.

Council is under no obligation to seek clarification and reserves the right to disregard any clarification that it considers to be unsolicited or otherwise impermissible.

1.22 Identity of the Tenderer

The identity of the Tenderer is fundamental to Council. The Tenderer (and the party to any ensuing contract with Council) will be the company, person or entity named as the Tenderer in Volume 4 Response Schedules.

Council may reject any Tender that is not from, or does not disclose, a solvent legal entity capable of entering into a contract with Council. The Tenderer must provide its Australian Business Number (ABN), or if it does not have an ABN, the reason for not having one.

1.23 Tendered Price

The price outlined in the Tender must quote all prices exclusive of GST.

The price tendered must be the total price, including all fees and costs. The pricing will be used by Council for budgetary purposes and therefore constitutes a tendered price and guotation and not an estimate.

1.24 Ownership of Tenders

Upon submission, all Tenders, documents and other information submitted by the Tenderer as part, or in support, of a Tender will become property of Council.

The Tenderer will retain copyright and other intellectual property rights contained in its Tender, however, each Tenderer, by submission of its offer, is deemed to have granted an irrevocable royalty-free licence to Council to reproduce, in whole or part, its Tender for the purposes of enabling Council, or such persons or bodies as Council reasonably considers necessary, to evaluate, clarify or vary the Tender, or to negotiate any resulting contract.

Tenderers and other recipients of this RFT do not acquire intellectual property rights in the RFT documents and must not reproduce any of the RFT documents in any material form without the written permission of Council other than for use strictly for the purpose of preparing a Tender.

The Tenderer agrees that if Council accepts its Tender, it will consent to Council publishing (on the internet or otherwise) the successful Tenderer's name and the contract value.

1.25 Confidentiality

Each Tenderer or other recipient of this RFT must keep confidential the RFT and any information provided by Council in connection with the RFT, including any information marked as confidential or which the Tenderer / recipient knows or ought reasonably to know is confidential or should be treated as such.

All Tenders received by Council will be held in confidence. Council must comply with Queensland privacy law, including the Privacy and Personal Information Protection Act 1998. Any personal information collected by Council in a Tender will be used for the purposes of evaluating that Tender. The Tenderer acknowledges that Council may disclose any information in the Tender to its professional advisors or if required by law (including, but not limited to, as required under the Freedom of Information Act 1989) or government policy. If an Tenderer wishes to access any of their personal information, they may contact the Nominated Contact Officer.

1.26 Evaluation Methodology

Tenders will be evaluated against the Evaluation Criteria detailed in, Item 5 of this Volume 1 Conditions of Tender.

Information provided by the Tenderer in Volume 4 Response Schedules and any other documents submitted at the time of tender will be the basis of the evaluation against these criteria. Tenderers are advised to address clearly all the requirements listed in Volume 3 Scope and Specification.

In evaluating Tenders, Council will have regard to:

- (a) Mandatory tender requirements, if applicable;
- (b) Specific evaluation criteria detailed in Item 5 of this Volume 1 Conditions of Tender;
- (c) The overall value for money proposition presented in the Tender; and
- (d) The particular weighting assigned (in, Item 5 of this Volume 1 Conditions of Tender) to any or all of the criteria (noting that any criteria for which a weighting has not been assigned should be assumed to have equal weighting).

Any Evaluation Criteria identified as Mandatory Criteria must be met by the Tenderer. For these criteria, a Tender will be assessed on a Yes/No (Pass / Fail) basis. If a Tender fails to fully comply with any one of those evaluation criteria, it may be excluded without further consideration.

The Tender will be assessed against other (non-mandatory) Evaluation Criteria, using a weighted scoring process based on information provided with the Tender.

A Tenderer may be invited to a one-on-one evaluation interview in order to review and clarify the Tender and to enable Council to interview key personnel identified in the Tender.

1.27 Evaluation Criteria

Notwithstanding the requirement of Clause 1.26 Evaluation Methodology, Tenders will be evaluated against the specific evaluation criteria detailed in Part 2 Item 5 Evaluation Criteria. Below are the details which apply to each of the evaluation criteria detailed in Part 2 Item 5 Evaluation Criteria.

Only tenders which are initially assessed as meeting the specified Mandatory Criteria, if any, will be assessed via the qualitative criteria detailed below.

Local Preference Policy

Etheridge Shire Council, via its Procurement Policy, has clear guidelines on how the procurement of goods and services must support local businesses wherever possible. Tenderers are required to demonstrate how (or if) their business supports the economy of the Etheridge Shire, and if awarded the Tender how it will continue to, or will, contribute to the local economy.

Tenders will be considered and assessed based on the following criteria.

Scoring

Score	Business Location
0	Outside Queensland
4	Within regional area
7	Shire boarding the municipality
10	Within Council's municipal boundary

Score	Local Content
0	0% local content and purchases
2	20% local content and purchases
4	40% local content and purchases
6	60% local content and purchases
8	80% local content and purchases
10	100% local content and purchases

Business Location

Each of the above criteria will be assessed in the following manner.

- Is the company's main office located within the Etheridge Shire Council municipal area or does it have a permanent established depot facility within the municipality i.e. not a temporary sublease or short term lease arrangement?
- Is the company's main office located within bordering municipalities or does it have a permanent established depot facility within these municipalities i.e. not a temporary sublease or short term lease arrangement?
- Is the company's main office located within the Far North Queensland Region or does it have a permanent established depot facility within the region i.e. not a temporary sublease or short term lease arrangement?
- Does the company have no presence within the Etheridge municipality, bordering municapilities or region?

For clarity the bordering municipalities of Etheridge Shire Council are Mareeba Shire, Tablelands Regional, Charters Towers Regional, Flinders Shire, Richmond Shire, Croydon Shire and Carpentaria Shire..

Local Content

What percentage of the tender value is made up of goods, materials and services purchased from within the Etheridge Shire Council municipality?

Tenderers must provide an approximate breakdown and value of the types of labour, goods, materials and services that will be used and/or purchased as part of the completion of the Works Under Contract. Examples of expenses and purchases may include but not be limited to labour, fuel, materials, food, accommodation, etc.

Value for Money

Value for money will be assessed via an arithmetic comparison of each tender against the lowest complying tendered price. Tenders will be ranked and receive an arithmetic score with the lowest complying tender value being awarded maximum points with the remaining complying tenders ranked according to their total value excluding GST.

Tender Pricing Schedules will be checked for arithmetic accuracy and completeness as part of the Mandatory Criteria check. Tender Pricing Schedules found to be incomplete will not be considered beyond the initial Mandatory Criteria check.

Arithmetic errors in Tenderers Pricing Schedules may be corrected for clarity without notification to the relevant tenderer

Capability / Resources / Capacity

Tenderers will be assessed based on the information provided in their tender submissions regarding their ability to complete the tendered works.

Capability

- What demonstrated experience does the Tenderer have completing similar works within Etheridge Shire or other remote, regional settings?
- What is the Tenderers understanding of the project requirements and the proposed methodology to deliver the contract works to ensure the project requirements are fulfilled?

Resources

- What relevant resources does the Tenderer have available to them to complete the works?
- What procedures and processes are in place to ensure plant and equipment breakdowns do not adversely impact completion of work on site?

Capacity

- What is the Tenderers demonstrated capacity to complete the tendered works via the availability of plant, equipment and personnel?
- Does the tender program meet the contract completion timeframe?

Previous Performance

The Tenderer shall supply whatever documentation it deems necessary to demonstrate that it has successfully delivered similar works for Etheridge Shire Council or another similar client.

In providing documentation the Tenderer shall have regard to, and provide evidence of, works being delivered on time, within budget, to the required standard, with no significant contractual disputes or delivery problems encountered.

Where the Tenderer has previously delivered work for Etheridge Shire Council, consideration will be given to formal contractual items, positive and negative, encountered throughout the contract period. The information obtained from the enquiries, along with information supplied with the tender will be used to assess this criterion.

Where the Tenderer has not previously delivered work for Etheridge Shire Council, contact will be made with supplied referees to request information regarding the Tenderers past performance. The information obtained from these enquiries, along with information supplied with the tender will be used to assess this criterion.

Management Plan Documentation and Implementation

The Tenderer shall supply copies of example management plans used for previous similar projects.

If the Tenderer's management systems are third part certified please provide the certification certificate(s) as part of the tender submission.

Provision of examples demonstrating real world implementation of management systems including but not limited to audits, checklists, toolbox minutes and other site generated documents will be highly regarded.

Capability / Resources / Capacity, Previous Performance and Management Plan Documentation and Implementation will be assessed in the following manner.

Score	Assessment
0	Inadequate offer, many deficiencies, does not meet criterion
2	Marginal offer, some deficiencies, partially meets criterion
4	Fair offer, few deficiencies, almost meets criterion
6	Good offer, no deficiencies, meets criterion
8	Very good offer, exceeds criterion
10	Outstanding offer, greatly exceeds criterion

1.28 Priority of Documents

If there is any inconsistency between Volume 1 Conditions of Tender of this RFT and any other parts of the RFT then, unless it is expressly stated that the other part was intended to override this Volume 1 (and except where the inconsistency is identified prior to the Closing Time (in which case, clause 1.9 will apply)), the terms of this Volume 1 Conditions of Tender will prevail to the extent of that inconsistency.

2. Participation in the Tender Process

2.1 Costs of Tender

Tenderers remain responsible for all costs incurred by them in connection with their Tenders whether before or after the Closing Time and whether incurred directly by them or their advisers including costs arising as a direct or indirect consequence of amendments made to the RFT by Council. For the avoidance of doubt, Council will have no liability whatsoever to Tenderers for the costs of any negotiations conducted in the event that Council decides not to accept any Tenders.

2.2 No obligation to enter into a contract

By issuing this RFT, Council is under no obligation (whether equitable or legal) to proceed either in whole or in part with the procurement to which the RFT relates. Council is not committed contractually or in any way to any person who may receive the RFT or submit a Tender.

2.3 Canvassing of Officials

Any Tenderer or other recipient of this RFT who solicits or attempts to solicit support for its Tender or otherwise seeks to influence the outcome of the Tender process by:

- a) offering any inducement, fee, or reward, to any member or officer of Council, including councillors, or to any person engaged by Council, or acting as an adviser to Council;
- b) canvassing any persons referred to in this document;
- c) contacting any member or officer of Council, including councillors or any person engaged by Council, about the RFT or any process relating thereto, except as authorised by this RFT;
- causing or inducing any person to enter such agreement or to inform the Tenderer of the amount or approximate amount of any rival Tenderer; or
- e) canvassing any of the persons as set out above in connection with the RFT or the outcome of the Tender process,

will be disqualified from involvement in the RFT process.

2.4 Improper assistance

Tenderers must not seek or obtain the improper assistance of employees, agents or contractors of Council in the preparation of their Tender. In addition to any other remedies available to it under law or contract, Council may, in its absolute discretion, immediately disqualify a Tenderer that it believes has sought or obtained such assistance.

2.5 Anti-Competitive Conduct

Tenderers (and other recipients of this RFT) must not engage in any collusion, anti-competitive conduct or any other similar conduct with any other Tenderer or any other person in relation to the preparation, content or lodgement of their Tender. This includes, but is not limited to, the Tenderer:

- a) fixing or adjusting the amount of its Tender by or in accordance with any agreement or arrangement with any other Tenderer:
- b) entering into any agreement or arrangement with any other Tenderer that it shall refrain from tendering or as to the amount of any Tender to be submitted;
- paying (or offering or agreeing to pay) any sum of money, inducement or valuable consideration, directly or indirectly to any person for doing, having done, causing, or having caused to be done, any act or omission in relation to any other Tender or proposed Tender; or

d) communicating to any person other than Council, the amount or approximate amount of its proposed Tender (except where such disclosure is made in confidence in order to obtain quotations necessary for the preparation of the Tender, for insurance or contract guarantee bonds and/or performance bonds or professional advice required for the preparation of a Tender).

Where such actions are drawn to Council's attention, relevant Tenderers will be disqualified from any further involvement in this tender process.

2.6 Publicity

Recipients of this RFT must not undertake any publicity activities, including through social or any other media, in relation to the RFT, tendering process or Tender without the prior written agreement of Council, including agreement on the format and content of any publicity.

2.7 Conflict of Interest

The Tenderer represents that it has not placed itself in a position that may give rise to any Conflict in connection with the RFT and Tender. Alternatively, the Tenderer must:

- a) provide details of any actual or perceived interests, relationships or clients which that may cause a conflict of interest;
- b) notify Council if any Conflict arises after lodgement of its Tender; and
- c) indicate the strategy it has in place to manage the Conflict.

Council may disqualify a Tenderer from the tendering process if the Tenderer fails to notify Council of any Conflict or if Council is not satisfied with the strategy the Tenderer has in place to manage the Conflict.

2.8 Governing Law

These conditions of tendering are governed by the laws of the State of Queensland and the parties submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of that State.